
 

ADDENDUM #1 
 

December 2, 2022  

RFP Title: Strategic Plan Consulting Services – Health and Human Services 

Human Resources Management System Owner: County of Wake – Melissa England, Procurement 

RFP Bid No.:   #22-098 

  

The following items provide answers to questions that were submitted for RFP #22-098 as well as clarifications to 
the RFP document.  Wake County answers are in blue. 
 

1. Do you have a cost range for this project?  
The department has an anticipated budget of $100,000 – $200,000 for this project. 

2. What is the life of the contract? When does work need to end?  
The contract term will be between 1-3 years depending on the timeline from the proposer’s 
implementation plan.   

3. Does the contract include the completion of the Community Health Needs Assessment?  
No, this is already being developed by our Public Health Team.  

4. Does this contact include graphic design work and implementation or just strategic planning? 
This is just for Strategic Planning.  

5. What format is desired for - Orient and help the department develop a working knowledge of 
Social Determinants, Service Integration, Value Curve Progression, and Workforce 
Development.? 
We don’t have a desired format for now and are open to hearing suggestions from the 
proposers. The consultant will be the one to tell us how to achieve the goals. We would 
interview all the final proposers and expect them to present in the areas of interest. 

6. Whether companies from Outside USA can apply for this? (like, from India or Canada) 
We are only considering companies in the USA at the moment that are experts on the domestic, 
state and federal laws and regulations of Health and Human Services.  

7. Whether we need to come over there for meetings? 
Our priority will be to have all in-person meetings. 

8. Can we perform the tasks (related to the RFP) outside the USA? (like, from India or Canada) 
No. We are only considering companies in the USA at this time.  

9. Can we submit the proposals via email?  
No, email bids are not allowed for this RFP.  Responses must be submitted in accordance with 
the instructions in the RFP. 



10. Is there a font and text size requirement to complete this RFP/application process? My team 
and I did not see any included.  
No there is not a font and text size requirement for responses. 

11. Is there a budget for this project and if so, will you be able to identify the budget for the scope 
of work to be performed under this project? 
See response to Question #1. 

12. Is there a current incumbent providing this work today? If so, who is the current incumbent and 
how long have they been providing services under this current scope of work today?  
No, this work is currently not being performed by anyone. 

13. Is there an estimated budget for this project? 
See response to Question #1. 

14. Would you accept a cost proposal based on hourly consulting rates, since we do not price 
engagements based on the salaries and fringe benefits of individuals? 
We would accept cost based on total hours for each milestone; please include hourly consulting 
rates also. 

15. Can we provide a representative client listing instead of a comprehensive list? 
We prefer you to use the client references table found in section 4.6. 

16. What is the client’s expectation for the vendor conducting any or all of the scope of work on-
site? 
The majority of the sessions will be in-person. 
 

17. Is preference being given to local vendors? 
No, there is no preference given to local vendors.  
 

18. What is the client’s preferred scope of work timeline? Start date? End date? 
Contract term will be between 1-3 years depending on the timeline from the proposer’s 
implementation plan.  We anticipate services to begin at the start of Quarter 1, 2023. 
 

19. What is the budget or budget range allocated for this scope of work? 
See response to Question #1. 

20. Section 4.3.1 lists several questions about the company's background, including the length of 
time the company has been in business, the company size, and the length of time the company 
has been providing services to similar clients. What is the client’s expectation or preference for 
each of the company background statements listed above? 
We do not have an expectation or preference for these items. We just need a consultant that 
can provide the services defined in the scope and their background should indicate the 
capability.  

21. Section 4.6 asks for Client References. If work has been performed for State and strategic plans 
were built for different departments, is it sufficient to include references for each department? 
Yes, as long as the work performed is similar in scope and depth with what RFP is asking for.  

22. The RFP mentions the need for a “qualified consulting firm to develop and implement a strategic 
plan” (Section 1.1) and later states “provide…a comprehensive strategic plan that will be 
implemented.” Will the consulting team provide an implementation plan or participate in the 
plan’s implementation? 



Yes. The consulting team will assist in the development of the implementation plan and will 
provide consultation during the implementation.  

23. What is Wake County’s budget for strategic plan consultant services? If the budget is multi-year, 
what is the anticipated annual budget? 

See answer to Question #1. 

24. Please clarify and/or provide an example of what HHS considers to be “performance measures 
and KPIs” as expectations of both/each can vary by government entity.  
HHS has various programs that have agreement addendums and state benchmarks to meet. HHS 
also has internal benchmarking to track performance and to use when quantifying budget 
requests and justifications. So, these will vary from program to program. The consultant will 
help align these with the Strategic Plan and develop some where lacking.  

25. Has the County identified the key internal and external interested parties/stakeholders that the 
Consultant—on behalf of the County—will engage to help inform the vision, goals, etc. for the 
strategic plan, or will interested party identification be part of the Consultant’s scope of work? If 
the County has identified the interested parties, will the County share the approximate 
anticipated number of interested parties to help Proposers determine the required level of 
effort? 

Yes, to both. We have identified the internal stakeholders and will make them available to 
contribute to the work of the consultant. There may be some parties that the consultant may 
identify to be integral to the scope of work as well.  

26. Will the County please confirm that Economic Services, Child Welfare, Health Clinics, and Public 
Health are the service areas that performance measures and KPIs will be developed for? 

Yes. This will also include the Regional Centers in the North, West, South, East and Departure.  

27. Will the County please clarify the scope of the following: “Provide train-the-trainer type support 
and like activities to embed the skills of this consultation effort within the department itself.”? 
For example, are the skills that the County would like to embed within the department how to 
perform strategic planning (e.g., when subsequent updates are needed) and how to implement 
the strategic plan? Can the County clarify who will be trained (e.g., leaders, key 
programmatic/business and other staff) and approximately how many people will be trained? 
Does the County have preferred training methods (e.g., web-based, in person)? 
We expect the overall strategy to be developed and implemented in-conjunction with identified 
departmental staff. The Executive Leadership team will determine how best to deploy the 
strategy across the department.  

28. Does the County have specific ideas regarding needs for the following task: “Orient and help the 
department develop a working knowledge of Social Determinants, Service Integration, Value 
Curve Progression, and Workforce Development.” For example, is the County looking for specific 
training sessions, is the County looking for the Consultant to embed knowledge transfer in other 
strategic planning activities (e.g., facilitated strategic planning sessions), or both? 

All the above are areas which will be incorporated in the discussions as the strategic plan is 
being developed. During the deployment of the strategic plan, we have internal experts who will 
lead the execution of the strategic plan throughout the department. 

 



29. Does the County have a desired completion date for the project and/or milestones for key 
deliverables? 

Contract term will be between 1-3 years depending on the timeline from the proposer 
implementation plan.  We anticipate services to begin at the start of Quarter 1, 2023.  

30. Does the County have an anticipated budget for project activities, and if so, is the County able to 
share with Proposers? 

See answer to Question #1.  

31. Are there any specific programs or topics that should be at the forefront of this project? 

The entire HHS is a priority. The intent is to integrate the strategic plan throughout the 
department and all programs.  

32. Can the County clarify the scope of the following: “Business & Financial Mode, a Project and 
Portfolio Framework”? For example, does “Project and Portfolio Framework” refer to the 
optimal project and portfolio management framework (e.g. PMBOK)? 

Yes. This is referring to modeling after and applying Project Management Body of knowledge to 
HHS.   

33. Has the County identified external stakeholders that should be involved in the process? 

Not yet. We’ll be looking to identify those through some of the preliminary work the consultant 
will do.  

 
 

 


